

Using Envelopes

Version 8.04, for Sterling B2B Integrator 5.24



Using Envelopes

Version 8.04, for Sterling B2B Integrator 5.24

1 0	Note Before using this information and the product it supports, read the information in "Notices" on page 57.				

Copyright

This edition applies to the 8.0.4 Version of the IBM Sterling B2B Integrator and to all subsequent releases and modifications until otherwise indicated in new editions.

© Copyright IBM Corporation 2000, 2012. US Government Users Restricted Rights – Use, duplication or disclosure restricted by GSA ADP Schedule Contract with IBM Corp.

Contents

Chapter 1. Introduction to Document Envelopes	Chapter 17. Searching for Global Control Numbers		
Envelope Structure Base Envelopes Types of Envelopes	Chapter 18. Updating a Global Control Number		
Chapter 2. Wildcards in Envelopes 3 Wildcards in Deenveloping (Inbound) Work 3 Wildcards in Enveloping (Outbound) Work 4	Chapter 19. Correcting an Invalid Global Control Number		
Chapter 3. Wildcard Deenveloping Example 5	Chapter 20. Deleting a Global Control Number		
Chapter 4. Control Numbers 7	Chapter 21. Viewing Local or Global Control Number History 41		
Chapter 5. Exporting and Importing Control Numbers 9	Chapter 22. Searching for Transaction Register Records		
Chapter 6. Transaction Register 11	Chapter 23. Deleting Transaction		
Chapter 7. Creating a New Envelope 13	Register Records 4		
Chapter 8. Importing and Exporting Envelopes	Chapter 24. Setting the Number of Days Information is Retained in Transaction Register		
Chapter 9. Searching for an Envelope 17	Chapter 25. Viewing IBM Sterling		
Chapter 10. Searching for Related Envelopes 19	Gentran:Server for UNIX Envelopes In Sterling B2B Integrator		
Chapter 11. Viewing Document or Envelope Details 21	Chapter 26. Viewing Sterling Gentran:Server for UNIX Interchange and Group Organization Records 51		
Chapter 12. Copying an Envelope 23	Chapter 27. Checking the Queue for the		
Chapter 13. Updating Envelope Properties 25	EDI Sequence		
Chapter 14. Deleting an Envelope 27	Chapter 28. Introduction to Envelope Properties		
Chapter 15. Specifying a Default Envelope 29	Notices		
Chapter 16. Creating a Global Control			

Chapter 1. Introduction to Document Envelopes

A *document envelope* consists of control information that enables organizations to effectively exchange documents. The document envelope takes the original document, assigns a control number, and packages header and trailer information with it, prior to submitting it to a trading partner. Creating document envelopes is necessary if you wish to do EDI with your trading partners.

Note: If you have not already created maps, create any maps in the IBM Sterling B2B Integrator Map Editor needed for translating before you create the envelope.

During the envelope creation process, you will need to assign the envelope name, description, and parameters, such as unique identification numbers (control numbers).

Note: Each time a user adds, modifies, or deletes an envelope, the action is logged to create an audit trail based on the user who performed the event.

Envelope Structure

IBM Sterling B2B Integrator supports the use of many EDI protocols. The EDIFACT, ASC X12, SWIFTNet, and ODETTE protocols each have three levels of envelopes:

- Interchange (outermost) Contains an interchange header and trailer, and all the data sent from one sender to one receiver in the same transmission.
- Functional group (middle) Contains a group header and trailer that surrounds a group of transaction sets of the same type.
- Transaction set (innermost) Contains the standard (EDIFACT, ASC X12, and so forth) message surrounded by a header and trailer record.

In addition, Sterling B2B Integrator supports CII, TRADACOMS, and ACH-CTX, which only have one level of envelopes—the message group header.

Base Envelopes

Sterling B2B Integrator uses a concept of a *base envelope* as a starting point to create a new envelope. The base envelope maintains a link to the new envelope that inherited its properties. If you modify the base envelope, all related envelopes (that is, ones that inherited the base envelope properties) change, as well.

Note: If you plan to create many envelopes using base envelopes, it is recommended that you do not use the base envelopes in production. You may want to document how your base envelopes are linked to other envelopes.

The default envelope is the version of the document envelope that Sterling B2B Integrator uses. You can specify a default envelope only if there are two or more versions of the same envelope. One version must be selected as the default.

Types of Envelopes

There are many types of envelopes provided in Sterling B2B Integrator. Each envelope is defined by its envelope properties. These predefined enveloping and deenveloping business processes are available for you to incorporate into your own business processes. Envelope parameters specify whether the document is inbound or outbound:

- *Inbound envelopes* identify documents that come into Sterling B2B Integrator so they can be properly routed. Inbound envelopes also give you the option to translate documents when you choose to check documents for compliance. By choosing to translate documents from within the envelope, you can reduce document processing time because you do not need to specify a separate Translation service step in the business process.
- *Outbound envelopes* identify documents so that they can be sent to and received by trading partners.

Chapter 2. Wildcards in Envelopes

As a way to help reduce the number of envelopes you need to create and use, the EDI Enveloping and EDI Deenveloping services support use of an asterisk (*) as a wildcard character in mandatory envelope fields for X12, EDIFACT, SWIFT, CHIPS, FEDWIRE, and ACH-CTX only. The exception to this rule is when the field is Sender ID, Receiver ID, or a qualifier for one of those fields. For example, in EDIFACT the following fields are conditional, but are considered to be part of the Sender / Receiver ID and therefore must have a "*" placed in the field if you want to override those values:

- (0008) Interchange Sender Internal Identification
- (0042) Interchange Sender Internal Sub-identification
- (0014) Interchange Recipient Internal Identification
- (0046) Interchange Recipient Internal Sub-identification

For optional fields, the wildcard value is leaving the field blank. With EDI Enveloping, for optional fields, the wildcard value is equivalent to leaving the field blank. If certain trading partners have specific requirements, you can create envelopes that pertain just to them, and the EDI Enveloping service chooses the envelope that is the best match. That is, the envelope that has the most matches to specific fields in the data (for example, Receiver ID and Receiver ID Qualifier), is the one selected.

Wildcards in Deenveloping (Inbound) Work

The EDI Deenveloping service receives data, parses the headers, and extracts the EDI information from it. The service searches the available envelopes for the closest match to the EDI data.

When setting up enveloping with wildcards, consider that:

- The Deenveloping service selects the envelope that matches the EDI data most closely. For example, if an envelope has the same Transaction ID as the incoming data, and another envelope has wildcards in all mandatory fields, the envelope with the matching Transaction ID is used.
- Sender ID and Receiver ID have priority over other EDI fields. For example, two
 envelopes are found that have a field that matches one EDI field from the data.
 One envelope matches the value in the Receiver ID field from the data; the other
 matches the Transaction ID field. The envelope that has the matching Receiver
 ID will be selected by the service and used for processing.
- If no envelopes are found that have an exact match to fields in the EDI data, and an envelope with wildcards does exist, the envelope with wildcards will be used.
- If multiple envelopes have the same matching information (for example, two
 envelopes match the Sender ID and Receiver ID exactly) the service ends with
 an error.
- The wildcard character is an "all or nothing" parameter. That is, if using asterisk, you cannot enter other characters in the field with it. For example, you can not enter Ma* to match MaxxMart and Madeira Foods.

Wildcards in Enveloping (Outbound) Work

For Inbound envelopes, a wildcard value in the envelope matches any value in the input document, while an empty value in the envelope matches only an empty value in the input document. For Outbound envelopes, a wildcard value is equivalent to an empty value in the envelope. You can override wildcards with specific EDI values in outbound processing. You must supply the EDI data to the business process and the data must be in the correct format (that is, name/value pairs).

One option is to use the lightweight JDBC adapter to pull fields in from database tables. Whatever method you choose to retrieve the fields, the results must be given to the Correlation service, which places them into process data. Passing the data to the Correlation service must be the last step in the business process before running the EDI Encoder service. When the EDI Encoding service runs, it uses the same best-match process detailed in the Inbound section to determine which envelope to use. When the X12 or EDIFACT envelope service runs, any envelope field values set in the Correlation service overrides those values defined in the envelope definition.

Note: If you are using wildcards for outbound acknowledgements (997 and CONTRL messages) so that you can have acknowledgements automatically generated from the values in the inbound document, you must use the "*" (asterisk) wildcard instead of an empty value (null) for a parameter. Additionally, when using wildcards for outbound acknowledgements, you do not need to use the lightweight JDBC adapter or the Correlation service to place values in process data. In this scenario, Sterling B2B Integrator automatically retrieves the values from the inbound document (if these values are present) and uses those values to generate the outbound acknowledgement.

When setting up your outbound processing, consider that:

- If an envelope field contains a wildcard, you must supply a correlation value for it or the service halts with an error.
- You can override wildcard values in an envelope by using the Correlation service to pass name/value pairs from the primary document to the EDI Encoder service.
- If an envelope contains specific values in the Sender ID, Sender ID Qualifier, Receiver ID, or Receiver ID Qualifier fields (that is, values other than a wildcard), the values passed from the Correlation service to the EDI Encoder service do not overwrite the values in the fields.
- If you are using the same envelope for inbound processing and acknowledgements, supply the Sender ID, Receiver ID, and Qualifiers in the envelope so that they are not overwritten by the correlation values.

Chapter 3. Wildcard Deenveloping Example

Procedure

- 1. Your trading partner, MaxxMart, transmits EDI purchase orders to your company.
- 2. The data reaches the EDI Deenveloping service, which extracts the EDI fields from the header, a portion of which follows:
 - Sender ID MAXXMART
 - Sender ID Qualifier ZZ
 - · Receiver ID KIMATA
 - Receiver ID Qualifier 00
- 3. The service checks the fields in all available envelopes for matches to the corresponding fields in the EDI fields from the inbound data.

It finds two matches:

- One is an exact match: an envelope named MaxxMart_Inbound contains the Sender ID MAXXMART and Sender ID Qualifier ZZ.
- One is a generic match: an envelope called GENERIC_Inbound contains wildcards in all mandatory fields.
- 4. The service uses the envelope called MaxxMart_Inbound for processing because it has more specific matches to the data.

Chapter 4. Control Numbers

Sterling B2B Integrator uses *control numbers* to help keep track of transmitted data and to guarantee that the control code is unique. Sterling B2B Integrator optionally checks for control number duplications, and uses incrementing control numbers that are mutually agreed upon by both sender and receiver to establish a verifiable sequence-checking process for transmitting and receiving EDI documents. If you attempt to use a duplicate control number, you are notified that the number already exists and must use another numeric value. Currently, two types of control numbers are supported, local control numbers and global control numbers.

Local control numbers are defined as a numeric value in the envelope definition. You assign the starting control number value when the envelope is created or edited. For inbound envelopes, if sequence checking is turned on, each time data comes in that uses the envelope, the control number in the data is compared against the control number in the envelope. If they don't match, an out-of-sequence error is generated. If they do match, the local control number is incremented and that becomes the next expected local control number. For outbound envelopes, the local control number is the current control number value to be used the next time data is enveloped. Each time a control number value is used, it is incremented and saved back to the envelope definition.

Global control numbers have the same functionality as local control numbers (increments after each use). The difference is that you can create you own global control numbers and that multiple envelopes can use the same global control number. For example, let's say you had two outbound envelopes for two different trading partners (PartnerA and PartnerB) using the same global control number called "abc", and the value you assigned initially to the control number was 1000. Then you envelope a document for PartnerA, that document will get control number 1000. Then you send a different document to PartnerB. That document will get control number 1001, using the same global control number of abc. Now you send an envelope to PartnerA doc again. This envelope is assigned a control number of 1002.

The EDI process uses a sequence check queue as a temporary storage area for inbound X12 and EDIFACT interchanges that have been processed by the respective deenveloping service, but still need to be sequence checked before being accepted. Services, such as the X12 Deenvelope service, perform all required compliance checks except for the sequence check, and puts the inbound interchange in a sequence check queue. After a service such as the X12 Deenvelope service completes, the EDI Post Processor service runs and picks up all interchanges from the sequence check queue. It performs the sequence check, generates any acknowledgements that are necessary, and invokes the specified business processes to handle each document.

Note: If EDI data is received with a control number that contains non-numeric characters, an exception will occur while processing the data. Non-numeric characters in EDI control numbers are not supported. The invalid control number causes a parsing exception.

Note: To preserve sequence checking in EDIFACT documents, you must use a different global control number for each envelope in a document. This allows

multiple threads to process correctly without incrementing the global control number out of sequence. System generated global control numbers are not affected.

Chapter 5. Exporting and Importing Control Numbers

About this task

The Import/Export feature enables you to save time and increase the accuracy of duplicating resources on different systems. Rather than just copying files from one computer to another, this feature enables you to move resources and data between application environments of the same version. The Import/Export feature enables you to:

- Move from a test application environment to a production application environment.
- Move resources from one application system to another.

The ability to import and export control numbers means that you can configure resources on one system and then move or copy them to a different system, thereby avoiding having to recreate the resources on each system. Even if you have resources that are going to be slightly different from one system to another, you can export the resources from one system and import them to a different system, and then make the necessary changes to the resource on the second system.

The Import/Export feature supports several different resource types, including control numbers.

To export control numbers:

- 1. From the Deployment menu, select Resource Manager > Import/Export.
- 2. On the Import/Export Resources page, next to Export Resources, click Go!.
- 3. Indicate the type of format to export to, XML Document or Install Bundle, and click **Next**.
- 4. Select **No** to indicate that you do not want to export resources associated with a tag.
- 5. On the Export Type page, indicate the type of export to perform for resources that have multiple saved versions in the system and click **Next**. Options are:
 - **Standard** Export the default version of selected versioned resources.
 - **Advanced** Enables you to choose, through wizard selections, whether to export only default versions or all versions of selected resources.
- Select Trading Partner Data as the type of resources you want to export and click Next.
- 7. For each resource type you selected to export, the wizard displays a selection page. For example, when you select Trading Partner Data, you can now select the specific data (in this instance, select **Control Numbers**) to export.
- 8. Specify whether you want to export private certificates and click **Next** and complete the following tasks:
 - a. Select the appropriate global and/or local control numbers from the Available box on the left side of the screen.
 - b. If you selected Advanced export option and you want to export all versions of each resource you select on this page, select Export All

- Versions, located below the Available pane (this option does not display if you selected the Standard export option).
- c. Click the **right arrow** to move the selected control numbers to the **To Be Exported** box on the right side of the screen.
- d. Click Next.

Note: If you selected Standard export option, the system automatically exports only the default version of the resources you select.

- 9. Did you select more than one resource type in step 6?
 - If Yes, repeat step 7 for each page related to the resource types you selected.
 - If No, proceed to the next step.
- 10. Click **Finish** to create the export file.
- 11. When the message *The system update completed successfully* displays, click View Export Report to see status information to confirm the export of each resource associated with the selected resource tag, if desired. Click Download Export data to download the export file to a hard drive or disk where you will store it.
- 12. In the File Download dialog box, click Save.
- 13. In the Save As dialog box, select the location to which to save the file, and click **Save**.

Chapter 6. Transaction Register

During translation, a translation error is returned when duplicate data is identified. You can use the transaction register to check for duplicate data, such as duplicate document reference numbers. Checking for duplicate data is invoked during translation by including the Transaction Register Update and Select standard rules in your translation map.

Note: To preserve sequence checking in EDIFACT documents, you must use a different global control number for each envelope in a document. This allows multiple threads to process correctly without incrementing the global control number out of sequence. System generated global control numbers are not affected.

Chapter 7. Creating a New Envelope

About this task

You can create a new envelope.

To create a new envelope:

Procedure

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Envelopes.
- 2. Under Create, next to New Envelope, click Go!
- 3. On the Envelope Standards page, select one of the following and click Next:
 - ACH
 - CHIPS
 - CII
 - EDIFACT
 - FEDWIRE
 - RND
 - SWIFT
 - TRADACOMS
 - VDA
 - ASC X12

Note: To create an envelope using the ODETTE or AUTACK standard, select EDIFACT.

- 4. Select the level of envelope you want to create, including inbound or outbound, and click **Next**.
- 5. Do one of the following:
 - To create this envelope from a base envelope, select the Base envelope from the Select Envelope list, and click **Next**.

Note: All the properties are pre-filled but you can update them as needed.

- To create a new envelope, select the Not Applicable from the Select Envelope list, and click **Next**.
- 6. On the Name page, type a unique name for the envelope, and a description or comments, then click **Next**.
- 7. Complete the properties for the envelope as necessary and click **Next** after each page until you reach the confirm page. Required fields are highlighted in blue.
- 8. Click Finish to add the envelope.
- 9. Click Return to continue.

Chapter 8. Importing and Exporting Envelopes

The Import/Export feature enables you to save time and increase the accuracy of duplicating resources on different systems. This feature enables you to move resources and data between application environments of the same version. The Import/Export feature enables you to:

- Move from a test application environment to a production application environment.
- Move resources from one application system to another.

The ability to import and export envelopes means that you can configure resources on one system and then move or copy them to a different system, thereby avoiding having to recreate the resources on each system. Even if you have resources that are going to be slightly different from one system to another, you can export the resources from one system and import them to a different system, and then make the necessary changes to the resource on the second system.

The Import/Export feature supports several different resource types, including envelopes.

Note: Importing an export file of envelopes always requires a passphrase, even if a passphrase was not required during the export. The passphrase is now required because of the addition of encrypted passwords that apply to some envelopes. When you are prompted for a passphrase for envelopes during the import of envelopes (when you did not use a passphrase when the envelopes were exported), you can supply any value for the passphrase.

Chapter 9. Searching for an Envelope

About this task

To search for an envelope:

Procedure

- 1. From the **Administration** menu, select **Trading Partner** > **Document Envelopes** > **Envelopes**.
- 2. In the Document Envelopes page, specify any combination of the following search criteria, and then click **Go!**
 - Search Envelope Name Display envelopes with names that contain the specified character or string.
 - Receiver ID Display an envelope that contains the specified Receiver ID.
 - Sender ID Display an envelope that contains the specified Sender ID.
 - Type Display all inbound or outbound envelopes.
 - Envelope Standard Display all envelopes that use a specific standard, including ACH, CII, EDIFACT, TRADACOMS, RND, SWIFT, VDA, CHIPS, FEDWIRE, or ASC X12.

The Document Envelopes page opens, listing the envelopes instances that match your search criteria.

Chapter 10. Searching for Related Envelopes

About this task

To search for related envelopes:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Envelopes.
- 2. Find the envelope using the Search or List function.
- 3. In the Document Envelopes page, next to the envelope for which you want to view related envelopes, click **version manager**.
- 4. In the Envelope Version Manager page, next to the envelope and under Related, click the icon.
- 5. In the Related Type dialog box, specify one of the following types of information and then click **Go!**
 - Base
 - Derived
 - Inner
 - Outer
- 6. You may get a list of related envelopes or you may get the following message:
 - No related envelopes satisfy your search criteria. Please try again.

Chapter 11. Viewing Document or Envelope Details

About this task

To view document or envelope details:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > EDI Sequence Check Queue.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the Document ID column, click the ID number of the document you want to view details for.
 - In the Envelope Name column, click the name of the envelope you want to view details for.

Chapter 12. Copying an Envelope

About this task

You can copy an envelope.

To copy an envelope:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Envelopes.
- 2. Find the envelope using the Search or List function.
- 3. In the list of envelopes, click **Copy** for the envelope that you want to copy.
- 4. Change the envelope name and description and click **Next**. Each envelope must have a unique name.
- 5. Change envelope properties and settings as necessary, clicking **Next** to continue to each following page.
- 6. Click Finish to update and save the envelope.
- 7. Click **Return** to continue.

Chapter 13. Updating Envelope Properties

About this task

You can update an envelope's properties.

To update envelope properties:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Envelopes.
- 2. Find the envelope using the Search or List function.
- **3**. From the list of envelopes, click **source manager** next to the envelope you want to update.
- 4. Click **edit** next to the envelope you want to update.
- 5. Update envelope properties and settings as necessary, clicking Next to continue.
- 6. Click Finish to update the envelope.
- 7. Click **Return** to continue.

Chapter 14. Deleting an Envelope

About this task

You can delete an envelope.

Note: Before deleting a base envelope, consider the impact on all related envelopes (ones that inherited the base envelope properties).

To delete an individual envelope or all versions of an envelope:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Envelopes.
- 2. Find the envelope using the Search or List function.
- 3. Next to the envelope you want to delete, click source manager.
- 4. In Envelope Source Manager page, do one of the following
 - To delete an individual envelope:
 Next to the version, under Delete, select the check box.

 Next to Delete Selected Versions, click Go!
 - To delete all versions of this envelope, next to Delete All Versions, click Go!

Chapter 15. Specifying a Default Envelope

About this task

You can specify an envelope as the default.

To specify a default envelope:

Procedure

- 1. From the **Administration** menu, select **Trading Partner** > **Document Envelopes** > **Envelopes**.
- 2. Find the envelope using the Search or List function.
- 3. Next to the envelope you want to make the default, click version manager.
- 4. To make an envelope the default, select the **default** button.

Note: A selected button indicates the envelope is the default. The previously selected default is cleared.

5. Click **Save** to update the default version.

Chapter 16. Creating a Global Control Number

About this task

You can create a global control number.

To create a global control number:

Procedure

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. Next to New Control Number, click Go!
- 3. In the Number Data page, complete the following fields and click Next:

Field Description

Name Name of the control number. Required.

Number Value

Number value of the control number. Use a number greater than zero. Required.

Sender ID

Coded identifier of the company or division sending the control number. Valid value is 12 standard characters. Required.

Receiver ID

Coded identifier of the company or division receiving the control number. Valid value is 12 standard characters. Required.

- 4. Click Finish to add the control number.
- 5. Click Return to continue.

Chapter 17. Searching for Global Control Numbers

About this task

You search for a global control number.

To search for a global control number:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. In the Search area of the Control Numbers page, specify all or part of a sender ID or receiver ID and click **Go!**
- 3. A list of control numbers that match your search criteria is displayed.

Chapter 18. Updating a Global Control Number

About this task

You can update a global control number.

To update a global control number:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. In the Search area of the Control Numbers page, specify all or part or none of a sender ID or receiver ID and click **Go!**
 - A list of control numbers that match your search criteria is displayed.
- 3. Click edit next to the control number you want to edit.
- In the Number Data page, edit the value in the Number Value field and click Next.
- 5. Click **Finish** to update the control number data.
- 6. Click Return to continue.

Chapter 19. Correcting an Invalid Global Control Number

About this task

You can correct an invalid global control number.

To correct an invalid global control number:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. In the Search area of the Control Numbers page, specify all or part of a sender ID or receiver ID, or in the List area, specify the first letter of the global number and click **Go!**
- 3. A list of control numbers that match your search criteria is displayed. Select edit for the control number you want to update.
- 4. Update the number value.
- 5. Click Next.
- 6. Click Finish.
- 7. Click **Return** to continue.

Chapter 20. Deleting a Global Control Number

About this task

You can delete a global control number.

To delete a global control number:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. In the Search area of the Control Numbers page, specify all or part or none of a sender ID or receiver ID, and then click **Go!**
 - A list of control numbers that match your search criteria is displayed.
- 3. Click **delete** next to the control number you want to delete.
- 4. When prompted, click **OK** to delete the control number.
- 5. In the Resource Summary page, review your deletion, and then click **Next**.
- 6. In the Confirm page, any envelopes associated with this control number are displayed. Click **Delete**.
- 7. Click Finish to confirm.
- 8. Click **Update** to continue.

Chapter 21. Viewing Local or Global Control Number History

About this task

You can view the history of local or global control numbers.

To view local or global control number history:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Control Number History.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the Search by Envelope Name area, type an envelope name and click Go!
 - In the Search by Global Control Number area, type a global control number and click **Go!**

Chapter 22. Searching for Transaction Register Records

About this task

You can search for transaction register records.

To search for transaction register records:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Transaction Register.
- 2. In the Search area, type a value in Field 1 through Field 6 to narrow your search and click **Go!**

Chapter 23. Deleting Transaction Register Records

About this task

You can delete duplicate records from the transaction register.

To delete (purge) transaction register records:

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > Transaction Register.
- 2. In the Search area, type a value in Field 1 through Field 6 to narrow your search and click **Go!**
- 3. Delete duplicate records as needed.

Chapter 24. Setting the Number of Days Information is Retained in Transaction Register

About this task

Sterling B2B Integrator supports the use of a customer override (edit) property file to override default property settings in the property files. The customer override property file is not changed during installation of Sterling B2B Integrator or application upgrades or patches. To prevent having your customized settings overwritten, use overrides whenever possible rather than editing the actual property file.

If you have made changes to the property file, either directly or by editing the associated in files in a previous version, your changes may be overwritten when a patch is applied. To prevent this, create a customer_overrides.properties file and reapply your modifications using overrides to the applicable property files in the customer_overrides.properties file. See each properties file for comments on each property in the file.

To set the number of days that information is retained in Transaction Register:

Note: This changes the retention period for all Transaction Register entries, not just the e-Invoice Compliance Solution entries.

- 1. Create a **customer_overrides.properties** file.
- 2. Add the following line to the customer_overrides.properties file: translator.mapper.maximumTransactionRegisterAge=[number_of_days_to_retain_info] In this example, translator represents the translator.properties file where the original property is set, mapper represents the Sterling B2B Integrator Map Editor user interface, maximumTransactionRegisterAge represents the number of days that the Transaction Register will retain information before being purged, and [number_of_days_to_retain_info] is the actual number of days (for example, if you set this parameter equal to 30, the information is retained for 30 days).

Chapter 25. Viewing IBM Sterling Gentran:Server for UNIX Envelopes In Sterling B2B Integrator

About this task

Note: You must have Attunity Data Connect[®] installed in order to view Sterling Gentran:Server envelopes within Sterling B2B Integrator. You must also have configured Sterling B2B Integrator for trading profile view support with the configGSUnix.sh script.

To search for Sterling Gentran:Server document envelopes:

Procedure

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner>Document Envelopes>Envelopes.
- 2. Select **Sterling Gentran:Server for UNIX** from the list of providers.

Note: If this option is not available, you have not yet configured Sterling B2B Integrator for trading profile view support.

3. Find the appropriate envelope using the Search or List function.

Chapter 26. Viewing Sterling Gentran:Server for UNIX Interchange and Group Organization Records

About this task

You can view Sterling Gentran: Server interchange and group organization records.

To search for Sterling Gentran:Server interchange and group organization records:

Procedure

- 1. From the Trading Partner menu, select Document Envelopes > Control Numbers.
- 2. Select **Sterling Gentran:Server for UNIX** from the list of providers.

Note: If this option is not available, you have not yet configured Sterling B2B Integrator for trading profile view support.

3. Find the appropriate record using the Search or List function.

Chapter 27. Checking the Queue for the EDI Sequence

About this task

The EDI Sequence Check Queue page allows you to view the current status of the EDI sequence check queue and to delete entries as necessary.

Note: If you modify an envelope to disable sequence checking or duplicate options after the options were previously enabled, you must delete the entries in the EDI Sequence Check Queue.

To check queue for EDI Sequencing events and delete entries as necessary:

Procedure

- 1. From the Administration menu, select Trading Partner > Document Envelopes > EDI Sequence Check Queue.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - In the Document ID column, click the ID number of the document for which you want to view details.
 - In the Envelope Name column, click the name of the envelope for which you want to view details.

Note: When viewing entries in the EDI Sequence Check Queue, the envelope link always shows the current default version of the envelope. This version may be different than the version that was used during deenveloping (by the appropriate deenveloping service) if the envelope was modified after the document was placed on the queue.

- 3. If you want to delete specific entries, select the entries to be deleted and click **Go!** next to **Delete Selected Items**.
- 4. To delete all entries in the EDI Sequence Check Queue, click **Go!** next to **Delete All Items**. This action deletes all the items returned, not just the items displayed on the current page.

Chapter 28. Introduction to Envelope Properties

Each envelope type has a specific properties page for the envelope and other pages that enable you to specify additional requirements for the envelope. The envelope properties are documented in the associated properties files.

Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered in the U.S.A.

IBM® may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult your local IBM representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to an IBM product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that IBM product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any IBM intellectual property right may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any non-IBM product, program, or service.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not grant you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing

IBM Corporation

North Castle Drive

Armonk, NY 10504-1785

U.S.A.

For license inquiries regarding double-byte character set (DBCS) information, contact the IBM Intellectual Property Department in your country or send inquiries, in writing, to:

Intellectual Property Licensing

Legal and Intellectual Property Law

IBM Japan Ltd.

1623-14, Shimotsuruma, Yamato-shi

Kanagawa 242-8502 Japan

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law: INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PUBLICATION "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be

incorporated in new editions of the publication. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk.

IBM may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

Licensees of this program who wish to have information about it for the purpose of enabling: (i) the exchange of information between independently created programs and other programs (including this one) and (ii) the mutual use of the information which has been exchanged, should contact:

IBM Corporation

J46A/G4

555 Bailey Avenue

San Jose, CA 95141-1003

U.S.A.

Such information may be available, subject to appropriate terms and conditions, including in some cases, payment of a fee.

The licensed program described in this document and all licensed material available for it are provided by IBM under terms of the IBM Customer Agreement, IBM International Program License Agreement or any equivalent agreement between us.

Any performance data contained herein was determined in a controlled environment. Therefore, the results obtained in other operating environments may vary significantly. Some measurements may have been made on development-level systems and there is no guarantee that these measurements will be the same on generally available systems. Furthermore, some measurements may have been estimated through extrapolation. Actual results may vary. Users of this document should verify the applicable data for their specific environment.

Information concerning non-IBM products was obtained from the suppliers of those products, their published announcements or other publicly available sources. IBM has not tested those products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, compatibility or any other claims related to non-IBM products. Questions on the capabilities of non-IBM products should be addressed to the suppliers of those products.

All statements regarding IBM's future direction or intent are subject to change or withdrawal without notice, and represent goals and objectives only.

All IBM prices shown are IBM's suggested retail prices, are current and are subject to change without notice. Dealer prices may vary.

This information is for planning purposes only. The information herein is subject to change before the products described become available.

This information contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

COPYRIGHT LICENSE:

This information contains sample application programs in source language, which illustrate programming techniques on various operating platforms. You may copy, modify, and distribute these sample programs in any form without payment to IBM, for the purposes of developing, using, marketing or distributing application programs conforming to the application programming interface for the operating platform for which the sample programs are written. These examples have not been thoroughly tested under all conditions. IBM, therefore, cannot guarantee or imply reliability, serviceability, or function of these programs. The sample programs are provided "AS IS", without warranty of any kind. IBM shall not be liable for any damages arising out of your use of the sample programs.

Each copy or any portion of these sample programs or any derivative work, must include a copyright notice as follows:

© IBM 2012. Portions of this code are derived from IBM Corp. Sample Programs. © Copyright IBM Corp. 2012.

If you are viewing this information softcopy, the photographs and color illustrations may not appear.

Trademarks

IBM, the IBM logo, and ibm.com® are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at "Copyright and trademark information" at http://www.ibm.com/legal/copytrade.shtml.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, PostScript, and the PostScript logo are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States, and/or other countries.

IT Infrastructure Library is a registered trademark of the Central Computer and Telecommunications Agency which is now part of the Office of Government Commerce.

Intel, Intel logo, Intel Inside, Intel Inside logo, Intel Centrino, Intel Centrino logo, Celeron, Intel Xeon, Intel SpeedStep, Itanium, and Pentium are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation or its subsidiaries in the United States and other countries.

Linux is a registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the United States, other countries, or both.

Microsoft, Windows, Windows NT, and the Windows logo are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both.

ITIL is a registered trademark, and a registered community trademark of the Office of Government Commerce, and is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group in the United States and other countries.

Java and all Java-based trademarks and logos are trademarks or registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates.

Cell Broadband Engine is a trademark of Sony Computer Entertainment, Inc. in the United States, other countries, or both and is used under license therefrom.

Linear Tape-Open, LTO, the LTO Logo, Ultrium and the Ultrium Logo are trademarks of HP, IBM Corp. and Quantum in the U.S. and other countries.

Connect Control Center®, Connect:Direct®, Connect:Enterprise®, Gentran®, Gentran®:Basic®, Gentran:Control®, Gentran:Director®, Gentran:Plus®, Gentran:Realtime®, Gentran:Server®, Gentran:Viewpoint®, Sterling Commerce™, Sterling Information Broker®, and Sterling Integrator® are trademarks or registered trademarks of Sterling Commerce™, Inc., an IBM Company.

Other company, product, and service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.

IBM

Printed in USA